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This is Fat Pilling. The date is September 30,

1982. I'm talking with Mr. George '."errelli, who

formerly worked at Chevy Gear and Axle and was a
member of Local 235. He then went into work with

the UAW and became very active in Region 1. He

lives at 23301 Middlesex, St. Clair Shores.

^

PP: Mr. Merrel l i , perhaps you could te l l me first ,

where you were born and when you were born?

""err: I was born in a coal mining community in Ramsey

Ohio in.1911. My parents were immigrants

from Italy and came to the United States in

190^.
PP: What was the exact date of your birth?

Merrj February 9th, 1911.

PP: Shat part of Italy did they come from?

Mern They come from the middle part of Italy. The

p r o v i n c e i s c a l l e d ' f j o ) ' < t n e m a r K S ,
The location would be approximately seve tty,

eighty lies north of Rome, but over towa
the Mediterranean sea.. Dad's home town was

on top of one of the ^Xf^^^mountains • My

mother lived down in the valley. I might add
a very lovely country. They came over to the

United States in 190^,

PP: Nov/, they were married before they came?
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PP:

Merr:

PP:

Te r r :

PP:

Merr:

PP:

Merr:

PP:

Merr:

Yes, they were married.

VJere you born here?

All the children were born here.

How many children?

There were six.

You said you went to what state?

Ohio. Ramsey Ohio. All of the children were

born in Ohio,

Were you raised in Ohio?

I was raised in Ohio until I was eighteen.

Then I came to the city of Detroit.

Why did you happen to come to Detroit?
The coal fields were rather depressed at the

.Ke in 1929 and

PP:

Merr

>P|

"err

time. Mad gone through tke

'30. The coal union was defeated. It was

s t r o ye d . I w a s g o i t o h i g h sch o o l . D i d n ' t
seem to be '(\(\\t future there. My older

brothers, I'm the youngest of four sons, were
all in Detroit. They were working in the auto

industry. I decided mid-term my junior year
that I 'd go to the big city.

Did you ever finish high school?

No, I didn't. I came to Detroit in 1928. Went
to work a t ( ^ST^T Bod ies . D idn ' t l i ke the

conditions and quit.

What kind of work did you do?

I was unskilled. I took anything that came

along. Before I came to Detroit, I drove
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r r « o v e r - t h e - r o a d S e e l t r u e ] : s t e e l c o } m y.

y ' ' shal l for t l s steel team. And of

course, we got jobs right along with It, But
these were in the Depression years. I came to

Det ro i t . Tha t was unsk i l l ed . My fi rs t j ob
was a metal finisher. Which was very hard,
0L~~6*^S^S^<3£S,IT/*) . • I didn't l ike the pay schedule either
because we were paid on the basis of piece-work.

And you couldn't make much money.

PP: Well, this was a long time before the Union.

Merr: This was 1928. Before the Union began.

PP: Nov/, what about you/brothers at this time?

W h e r e w e r e t h e y w o r k i n g ? J f

Merr: One was working at Dodge and.Chevrolet.

PP: At Gear and Axle?

Merr: Two worked at Chevy Sear and Axle, and the other

brother worked at Dodge Main. One brother was

supervisor and the other worked in a trench

shop as an assistant supervisor.
PP: So, this was not only just before the Unions

came in but also, before the Crash and before

the Depression.

Merr: Before the Crash and they were laid off just
like everybody else was. So v/as I.

PP: When you were laid off, you were very youngj
of course, and you hadn't been working very

much. What did you do to eat?
"err: I went back home.
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PP; Did they go back Yio^e, your brothers?

?/!errs Well, no. Three of them remained working.

They were older and I was the comparably new
one on the job. They struggled. Yes, the one

brother was laid off. Went back also for a

while, But he was first called back in 1930*

I was off work a little over a year,

PPs Did you work when you went back home, in Ohio?

Merr? Before I went back home, I was working at

Ford's>- I got la id off .

PPs Which plant? Rouge?

Merr$ I worked at Rouge, Began in Highland Park and

was transferred to Rouge, Almost went to Russia,

A reciprocal trade deal that they had worked out

with Russia in 1929, '30, For some reason the

others told me not to go, I'm quite happy that

I d i d n ' t .

PPs Is this the time when the Reuther brothers

went ?

Merrs No, they were in Europe after that. Although

they participated in part of that program that
went on for four years.

PPg Then what happened?

Merrs I went back to Ohio, I was there for approximately
a year. Then my brother got hired at Chevy
Gear and Axle. And was able to get assurance

that if I came to Detroit, I would probably

get a job.
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M e r r : G M , y e s . A n d t h e n w h e n L . A , Yo u n g g o t r e c o g n i t i o n

t h e y b r o k e o f f . C h a m p i o n o p a r k P l u g g o t

r e c o g n i t i o n , t h e y b r o k e o f f . B u t a l l o f u s

b e l o n g e d t o L o c a l 3 .

P P i I ' m v e r y i n t e r e s t e d b e c a u s e I h a v e n o t r e a l l y

t a l k e d t o a n y b o d y w h o w a s r e a l l y i n o n t h e

b e g i n n i n g o f L o c a l 2 3 5 . M o w d i d G e a r a n d A x l e

lerr, r.g e t o r g a n i z e d ?

The background of many of the Chevy Gear and

A x l e e m p l o y e e s w e r e c o a l m i n e u n i o n s . E i t h e r

t h e y h a d w o r k e d i n t h e c o a l m i n e s o r t h e i r

p a r e n t s h a d . T h e y c o m e j p r i m s ' i l y r f r o m f o u r

3 xa x Ohio, - Pennsylvania, Indi , rid Illinoi

Mer r

A b o u t h o w m a n y p e o p l e o f t h i s g r o u p , r o u g h l y,

w e r e o f P o l i s h b a c k g r o u n d ? B e c a u s e I k n o w

t h e r e w e r e a l o t o f P o l i s h p e o p l e w o r k i n g i n

\ t h e c o a l m i n e s . _

I n t he ' 37 e ra t h rough t he Second Wor l d , . r a r,

I w o u l d a s s u m e t h a t a p p r o x i m a t e l y 3 5 t o ^ 0

w e r e o f P o l i s h d e c e n t . T h e r e w e r e a l a r g e

s e g m e n t o f I t a l i a n s t h e r e . B u t t h e b i g g e s t

g r o u p w a s P o l i s h . A n d t h e y p r e t t y m u c h

d o m i n a t e d a c t i v i t i e s a t t h a t t i m e ; l e a d e r s h i

\ e l e c t i o n s a n d s o f o r t h .

W h o w a s t h e fi r s t p r e s i d e n t o f L o c a l 2 3 5 ?

M e r r : J o e S e W i c k i . M i c e c o n g e n i a l t y p e o f p e r s o n .

P P : W a s t h e r e m u c h p r o b l e m i n o r g a n i z i n g ?

M e r r ! Ye s , t h e r e w a s a p r o b l e m o r g a n i z i n g . A n d t h e

■J

J
PP:
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Merr: company device, they tried to keep the UAvV out. I

Including, so a people col l them 'go ;quad'.
But they call them loyal employees who were

organized that whenever the union people would
come out on Holbrook to pass out literature,

thJMa-we- would be on the roof with high-powered

water hoses to try to repel them if they

attempted to come in and sit down. What the

company didn't realize, there were many of us
who were loyal unionists who ' wormed OUf

way into key spots for peace C6fAim\kCib . And

they never -would have been successful if^they
had wanted to,1/

-Ps ihen you wormed your way into key spots . . .

Mer r : We beca e p " 2 •1 „ 1 g roup ' .
M . I s e e . Yo b e e p a t o f t h e l c - } g r o u p

o f t h e u n i o n p e o p l e . , —

"erri No, part of the so-called 'loyal group' who

were going to defend the company property

against the outside agitators.
PP: So, what happened when members of this group

who were real unionists and yet were pseudo-

members of the loyal group were told to repel

t h e . . . —

Merr: Ve never were faced with it. We had our plan
laid. They had broken down into groups of six.
We had one or two people in each group. I can

say^our objective was if anything happened, we



1

9
MERRELLI

Merr i

! ' e r r :

>P:

Merr

were going to sabotage i t . But , we were never

faced w i th t ha t dec i s ion .

And of course, there were many other plants

where th is was done. Th is was s t ra tegy tha t

was planned by various people in various plants J

But, we thank the Lord that we were never faced

w i t h t h e d e c i s i o n t o e x e r c i s e o u r o b j e c t i v e . T

would have probably been pretty bloody,

Mow long d id i t take , ac tua l l y, f rom the t ime

t h a t y o u r e a l l y s t a r t e d e a r n e s t l y t o t r y a n d

organize unti l you "were recognized?

Wi th the advent o f Pres ident Rooseve l t , w i thout \

t h e p r o g r a m th e y c a l l t h e ■ L e a n

'36 when John Lew:

f rom the r tu>?)

I b o r e l ' M o n o

. : - ' . t h e 3 t v o l u n t a c y „ ' t i o n ,

This began '3^ but It was dominated by the

^ t foo) , tha t we had the r igh t to choose

people of our own. So, we were really dis
sa t i sfied w i th tha t . The la t te r pa r t o f ' 35 -

i s s a i d L \ o z 0 b r o k e a w a y

We began to talk about

u n i o n O 0 * ) . 1 9 3 6 w h e n t h e y s t r u c k a t •

GM in Flint, the momentum picked up at Gear and

Axle. However, they didn' t have sufficient

strength to begin with, so we remained working.

But, we worked very closely with the UAW, We

got our charter in February 1937- That's when
we broke away from Local 3. And we got re

cognition .
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PP:

:v;err

PP:

Mer r

PP:

10

When you go t you r cha r te r and you were re

c o g n i z e d , d i d e v e r y o n e j o i n ?

(No , i t was an open shop . We had to conduc t

' o r g a n i z a t i o n a l a n d d u e s r i o t s . W e w e r e v e r y

f o r t u n a t e t h r o u g h t h e O n ) . T h e P o l i s h

o u p p l a y e d a g r e a t p a r t . W e u s e d t o , a b o u t

e v e r y t h r e e o r f o u r m o n t h s , h a v e m e m b e r s h i p

d r i v e s , o r d u e s d r i v e s , w h a t e v e r i t w a s , W e

h a d p i c k e t s o u t s i d e , O ' ^ O

A t t h a t p e r i o d , w i t h t h i s n o n - u n i o n s h o p ,

a n d v o l u n t a r y p a y m e n t o f c l u e s c o l l e c t e d m o n t h l y,

we were ab le to ma in ta in 85 to QOW o f the peop le

C?V the un ion members who had pa id up. We had

a s m a l l h a r d c o r e o f a b o u t t h r e e h u n d r e d . B u t ,

w h e n t h e h e a t w e n t o n t o t h e m , t h e y w o u l d j o i n .

T h e y ' d p a y o n e m o n t h a n d t h e n t h e y ' d s l i p b a c k

o f f a g a i n .

When you mean the hea t , t he hea t f rom the Un ion

y o u ' r e t a l k i n g a b o u t ?
\Y e s . T h e p i c k e t l i n e s o u t s i d e . A n d t h e t a c t i c s \

u s e d w a s w e p u t p r e s s u r e o n t h e l i n e . A n d i f

t h a t d i d n ' t w o r k w i t h s o m e o f t h e r e a l h a r d - c o r e s

w e w e r e a b l e t o o r g a n i z e t h e s i l e n t t r e a t m e n t .

N o o n e w o u l d t a l k t o t h e m . T h e m o s t e f f e c t i v e

w e a p o n I ' d s a y t h e r e I s .

I n E n g l a n d , w h e r e I w a s r a i s e d , t h a t i s k n o w n
11

as sen d i n f f s o m e o n e t o C o v e n t r y . I t i s v e r y

e f f e c t i v e. Do you know why th<2s£ hard-core held
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o u t l i k e t h a t ? Wa s i t t h a t t h e y o b j e c t e d t o•nthe dues or scared of the company?

There . two good reasons , I t h ink fo r mos

o f them. The fi rs t reason , and I wou ld say

about 80 or 90; ' o f them fe l l in to that category

a l so . They t hough t t ha t by exh ib i t i ng ; an t i - un i o .

a t t i t u d e s , i t w o u l d e n h a n c e t h e i r p o s i t i o n t o

g e t t i n g t h e b e t t e r j o b s . A n d a l s o , t h e y j u s t

d i d n ' t w a n t t o p a y t h e d o l l a r . T h e a d d i t i o n a l

10M s t r i c t l y d idn ' t wan t to pay the do l l a r a

m o n t h . D e s p i t e t h e b e n e fi t s t h a t t h a t g o t .

It "was those two major things. There was a

th i rd group, but there was on ly about a ha l f

a dozen■\H&' c la imed that i t was against their

PP:

Merr :

r e l i g i o u s ^ o m i n a t i o n t o j o i n a n o r g a n i z a t i o n

Were you on the f i rs t negot ia t ing p i©a?

PP:

Merr:

\

i

J
No, I was an a l ternate commit teeman. In

1937, I was e lected an officer o f the Union.

L ike the cha i rman o f the t rus tees . I was an

al ternate commit teeman. I was on the

educational committee In 1937 a-n-cl 1938.

When did you actually get to the point where

you were no longer physical ly working in the

p lan t bu t jus t work ing fo r the Un ion?

l9iK). I worked as an %ternate committeeman

on the format ion of the wage schedule, senior i t ;

schedule that we were s tar t ing f rom scratch.

I was act ive in the Union r ight f rom the
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; e r r :

r r ;

. ' e r r :

IP:r i :
- "

beg inn ing .

The only papers that I 've seen that are

current ly at the Reuther L ibrary at Wayne State,
are papers that were put in by John Gn&a,

I looked at some of these papers because most

o f t hem a re shop commi t t ee repo r t s . I t ' s

in terest ing to see th ings that now people take

fo r g ran ted were ve ry, ve ry s t rong ly fough t

f o r . E v e r y s t e p w a s j u s t o n e l i t t l e s t e p

along the way.

Ye s . E s t a b l i s h i n g t h e s e n i o r i t y a g r e e m e n t

required a great many hours of debate among

o u r s e l v e s b e c a u s e o f d i f f e r e n t o p i n i o n s , I t

was not unusual for us to s tar t a t n ine

o'clock in the morning and wind up at eleven

o ' c l o c k a t n i g h t . T r y i n g t o p u t t o g e t h e r a

senior i ty agreement that would be acceptable

to the major i ty. I t was not easy because we

had no d i rec t ion a t a l l . We had to work f rom

t h e s e a t o f o u r p a n t s , y o u m i g h t c a l l i t . S o ,

i t requi red a lo t o f d iscuss ion to come around

to an understanding of what people were talk ing

about. I , -wa^ going—to a labor school 1937.,

I t wa: put on by t ] - " ' " / i th some semi-

nro fess iona ls . Two who were par t o f the

Communist party who were seeding that to try

and ga in con t ro l . We s tud ied pa r l i amen ta ry
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Merr: lav-/, collective law, seniority, and a number

of other things. It was a three night a week

plus Gaturday program.
PP: What happened when there was a grievance in

those early days? Because you really didn't

have any procedures set up, did you?

Merr: No, it began with just arguing about it in

the plant. And we were able at the time to

use the walk-out. That would get so difficult

we'd call an officer in. 3e\fg/&\ of them -were

just inexperienced. Although they were good
trade unionists, we needed some experience.

It was primarily brute force. When I say

brute force, I 'm not talking about physical.

I'm talking about the threat .:" shutting you

down. •'We h d no arbitration at that time.

'■'hen you look back on it, it was a rather

haphazard way of doing it. But this came up
because there was no experience, on either side.

When did Gear and Axle actually become 100$

unionized?

That came in the 1950s, before we got the 100$,

We had got the union shop for our members, we got

the representation for our members the latter

part of *^0.
PF: At this t ime, was there a ^gion?

.err: Yes. Michigan was divided and elected seven

regional directors. They were al] ■■? t " as

PP:

;err :
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PP:

Merr:

PP:

Merr:

pp.

Merr:

one in 1937 • id ther . : - . ven reg ie

directors in Michigan, It was divided in 19^2

Into areas. In the Metropol i tan Detroit area

there were two regions; the West side and the

East side. With two directors on each side.

Then in the early '60s, the Detroit groups

were divided up into four. There was a Region

1 right > the beginning, which encompassed

over 200,000 people.

Where was it located?

The firs t o ffices were in the CiHo) S>y^J^rrJ^ \

Then the official offices were in the Penobscot I

building. I think the Wayne State area, but I 'm /
not sure.

You mean the Macabees building,■maybe.

The Macabees bu i ld ing. i \YVj / ta^rL l ib rary.

The regional office was there.

Was it in 19^0 or 19^1 you became an international

rep?
19*1-0, Prior to that, I worked as part-time
internat ional rep for Walter Reuther. Let

me give you this background, you'll under

stand it. I was active in formation of the

Local and the seniority agreement. In 193s.

when our union split, and our president Paui-Uflto.

Martin, who was making a deal with Ford on
the insurance end^i <And the unio ied,
- uiined with the CIC . Dup. Hi I i ' M
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COAV/acV ith General Rotors in 193? "to cut
the fundamental and basic parts of/\ collective

bargaining out l ine. Reduced our col lect ive
bargaining time to two hours a day with no

carry-over for five hundred people per committee'
man. And some other changes. ,7e felt« pretty
much at Gear and Axle, And we were determined

that if we reorganized :hat would never

happen again. Ernie Bennet and I are the
architects of the General Motors Council

Complex which now affects all of the major

corporations in the Union. We put it together.
We submitted it to the 1939 convention. And I

had the? job from my Local to direct it's

adoption at the convention. I had the job of

putting together all'the GM people. And we
were dete ■" ' 'M.t this Council be set up

to be representative for al l the plants. And

we particularly were determined that no

president or anyone else would have the right
to get in our way; negotiate a contract. That

reements would require a referendum vote of

the membership. Secondly, we were determined

that the negotiating committee in large

corporation would be made up of people fowthe

plant, rather than an international union

representat ive. We final ly were successful
in 1939. We had a struggle with the leader-



16
AMRRELLI

Mer

PP:

Merr

ship of the union over that one provision.
Formation of the Council they accepted. But,

the question of the composition of the bargaining

committees . . .

(stop in tape)
You were talking about the composition of the

barga ining c ommi11ees,
Yes. With the acceptance of the principle of

the rank and file membership on the bargaining

committee in corporations, we had It adopted

and it gradually became part of the constitution.

'./hen the convention concluded and we

returned back home, Walter Reuther was elected

Regional Director and also was selected by the
International Executive Board as the director
of the General Motors department. I worked

with him as a part-time representative because

the Union just didn't have any money for staff.

He had one member on his staff at all. oo,

I would be paid by my local union for lost

t ime. I had an internat ional representat ive 's

card representing Walter and General Motors

plan^Detroit, Pontiac, Ohio, and Grand Rapids.
Me selected me to work on it because of my

knowledge of the General Motors set-up and the
fact that I had been very active in negotiating
the seniority agreement and wage schedule. So,

from April of 1939 until October the 1st, 19^0,
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I worked as an International representative

on a part-time basis; paid by my local union.

Because the Union didn't have no money to

pay I t 's representat ives.
How did Gear and Axle feel about this time you

took away from work?

I was not on what would, considered keyA 7
job, so they could replace me. They weren't
too happy about it, but they were reluctant

to make an Issue of it because they didn't

know what our reaction would be. (laughing)

In fact, that was a period really when the

company, although in one way they were in
control, on the other hand they were feeling the

water, so to speak. They didn't know what

powers the Union had. They'd seen the Flint
sit-down. They'd seen some of these other

b ig s t r i kes : Melsey-Mayes. : , -y weren ' t

quite sure what was going to happen.
Those were long ones. What they weren't

sure and did not know how to handle was the

quicky strikes. Where you got angry and you
couldn't solve the problem and you walked the

0 > . .
people out. There were no no-strike provisions,
at the time. There were no laws that forbade

us from doing it. We had the power to shut them

down. And unfortunately, sometimes we shut
them down for reasons that didn't justify it.
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Merr: But, th&srwas the period we were going through.

And this is why, while I'm sure they were not

happy with the role that I was playing, that

being an employee working four hours and then

l e a v i n g t h e p l a n t f o r f o u r , t h e \ n o t i r
o s i t i o n t o t a k e u s o n . B e t h e y k n e w

that we would immediately react. Including

shutting the plant down if we had to. f£&c$&^-~±^

they would be tampering with Union representation.
That's when we'd gotten very jealous. So, they

did not do it. They were not happy but they
suffered along with i t .

'./here were members of 235 meeting at this time?

Our first series of meetings in 1937, after we

got our charter, was in a hall on Edwin in
Hamtramck. When we walked into that hall,

facing us was a picture of Jos-e-ph Stalin. This
was the Communist influence before we found

out what happened. But, we had two meetings

there. And then we were not Impressed by

Joe Stalin and his program. Forced to change

to another hall. And then we met at Carpenter

Hall on Carpenter Avenue just east of (f i^ih) /^
: MM.fi 1, ^ejm Side 2

Carpenter H 11 icl oas big enough to hold
our monthly meetings, which usually it's three,
four hundred people; five hundred people.

If we had a serious strike problem or a new

1 & * 0 L ^
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Merr: contract, we would have to rent high school

gyms and use those.
PP: Now, about what year was this?

Merr: This would be the '39. '^0, '41 years. The

formative years.

PPi Did you ever have any women work in the plant

during World War II?
Merr: Yes. It was an all male plant. And then

during the Second World far we had to
out specio.1 senior i g . provi i Ions. In u-

facturi v plants like Chevy ear and Axle

were male employees. ,/ere asked and agreed.

We worked out a provision, to give up their

easier job that they had worked to get on to,

particularly when they were lighter jobs, so
that women could be placed, on those jobs for

the duration of the war. Following the war,

the agreement was expired and everybody went

back to their original place in the game.

The first time women went to work at Gear and

Axle was during the Second World War, They're

sti l l working there now.

PP: Did some of them stay on at all?

Merr: Oh yes. They had sufficient seniority to stay on.

Not very many because a lot of the pz^) came
back from the SeirviCfc to take jobs first. And,

they stayed on. If they didn't stay on they
had recall rights. They had to have three, four
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Merr: years service, then recall rights. And came

back.

FP: What kind of jobs did they have at that time?

Merr: At Gear and Axle you had to do the heavy axle

operation. But there would be a lot of l ight

jobs like press line assembly. And everybody
worked to get on those jobs, C1^^) UJ<y^ u^^^-^^^-a-^ ot-c^c+^^J

Czi4) Ha~)d+J e There were a lot of

job !' t ere just too heavy for the 0] : is ?y
fer ] ■!; the average female. >o, ■.. h; d to

work out this special provision. And they did

i t very wi l l ingly. There were very few object ions

t o i t .

PP: Did any women later go in to the apprentice

programs or E.I.T. programs?
Merr: Yes, they did. Later on, but that was way

afterwards. I was act ive in establ ishing the

E.I.T. program ai. GM. In 1939, following the

convention, when we elected our first officers
of the General Motors Council, I was the

Secretary of that counci l ,
PP: Who was the president then?

Merrj It was Jack L-vi\*\etfb\ar\ , And they elected from

the council; nationwide, five members on the

national negotiating committee. I was one of

them. So, I was on negotiation in 1939 when

the tool and die strike occurred. I was on

the committee as secretary. 19'lM),
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tool and die str ike was where?

1939.

No, but where was it?
We struck seven plants. It was a tactical

str ike under the disguise of ski l led trades.

Because skilled trades, in all the years,

they were lucky to work six months a year.
So, we used that period and we shut them down

just before the change of the models. So, they
couldn't get the. models out. Our tactics wasA
to close down the skilled trades but leave the

production workers with work. They could only
work an 'x' number of days before they had to

lay them off. But the tactics there was they
were eligible for unemployment compensation.

Well, that was the first and last time,
of course, because immediately following that,

they changed the law. (laughing)
Who was eligible for unemployment at that time?

The skilled trades?

No, all production. We struck the tool and die
and ' t he ma in tenance worke rs ; a l l t he sk i l l ed

workers. And production workers go back to work.

They'd go into work two or three days. But,
machines would break down; nobody repair them.

So, then they were eligible for unemployment

compensation. Which was new at that time, also.
Of course, after that, they then changed the law.
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FP: Which meant what? They had to be working so

many days?
Merr: No, they changed the law that if a plant was

struck, everybody was affected. With each

CZQZ-/ be ing on s t r ike.
PP: Well now, let me ask you this. At that time,

which was what year?

Merr: '39.

PP: Was there any kind of strike fund?

Merr: Mo, no strike fund whatsoever. In fact, the

f un ion had jus t reorgan ized. And I was s t i l l
working part-time with my Local thing \*A~

they had no funds. How did we survive in 1939?
Tool and die? Well, we had a crew that went

out and ^se^tled -wi4h some- farmers. We struck

in August. We'd get cabbages and stuff from

farmers. Donations from bakeries; day old,
two day old bread and cakes and things like that.

We set up soup kitchens. Some of the time, after

two, three weeks, their big meals was the
bread and soup that they got at the union hall.

But that's how we did it. Farmers would donate

chicken, geese, cabbage; go out in the field^
take "what you need.

PP: How long was that strike?

Merr: Strike lasted five weeks, six weeks. We had
no unemployment compensation, no strike fund.
Whatever funds you had in the bank you were stuck

w i t h .
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PP: So, then after that, what was the next step

in your career?

Merr: In 1939, /wwfMRartin then began to set up

dual committees, bargaining committees in the

plants when we split. GM seized upon that,
"; ve were convinced that it was part of

jM's tactics. They then claimed that they

didn't know who represented the majority of

the workers. So there would be no recognition

of anybody. So, we worked for a long time

without recogni t ion. That 's what the tool

and die strike was all about. Because they

were putting dual committees into plants that

we had control of. And with that, G/r would

claim neutrality and would take away our

recognition. So, we had to devise tactics on
how we were going to stop that. It came to

tool and die strike. Out of that tool and die

strike, somewhere we got a few cents increase
in wages, a commitment, very important commit

ment, that they would study tool 0 l ie leeds.
the basis of trying to come up with a format

t] ■ ! iuld live the people more work, longer

time. We took the best that came out of that,

because they did eventually work it out. The
tradesmen were able to work twelve months a year.

We came out with recognition that there would
be no more dual committees. And we had got an
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sabotage or at tempt to stop an elect ion by

the NLRB. Recogn i t ion e lec t ion . We then had

t h a t e l e c t i o n i n A p r i l o f 1 9 ^ 0 , W h i c h o u t o f

f o r t y - f o u r p l a n t s , t h e C I O w o n f o r t y. A n d t h e

AFL , f ou r.

With that, came the new contract nego

t i a t i ng , wh i ch we nego t i a ted i n 19^0 . I was

on that commit tee, Theren/Sfe five o f us .

Jack Liv ingston was chairman or v ice-chairman,

B i l l S t e v e n s o n w a s o n e o f t h e f fi c e r s . f t M t o >
" "or frorr ~"; ' t, represented

that area. And we had a person from Indiana,

( / * {$ ) f t ^^T That was the or ig ina l fi rs t
five on that committee. And then I was on the

committee again in 19^0 despite the fact I was

working for the L3Z&) A Union at that time.

I worked on a temporary basis at the Local thing

until October 1st, 1940, after the convention

in St. Louis. Then I appointed the staff pe-p&bn

to work in Saginaw Michigan ?f&r Uni^Joai Smith.

Well, then did you live and work down here?
."err: No, my family stayed here and : ked p t] sre .

' M a y e 5 t l e r i i . h e r e .

What year l id „ st married, by the way?

Got married in 193^.

I believe you mentioned that your wife is Polish.

Is she Polish from this area?

- -

0T pyx*

PP.x x ;
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Merr: Hamtramck. She was born and raised in Hamtramck.

PP: i Did you meet her as a result of working at

Gear and Axle?

Merr: No, I met her at the dance at Gmystone Ball

room. Then the romance started up. This was
b e f o r e t h e u n i o n s e v e r C ^ Z ^ ) , S h e s t a y e d

behind with the two gir ls. She pract ical ly

raised them 'cause I was gone, I worked there

from October the 1st to January. I didn't l ike

the conditions I had to work with, That I won't

go in to. I notified Walter Reuther who was
the one who suggested my appointment 'cause

he was GH director. That I go up there and

handle that 'cause there was nobody ex

per ienced up there at a l l . The first job I
had was to reorganize the union. Out of the

whole city there was*five GH plants. We had

approximately 1000 members out of lipOOWorkers.
So the job was to reorganize. We were moving

along pretty rood, but I had some conditions
•■-hio; ■Mo- M , -..- " ■'";■ ■ o

\Toti iied /a] ter that

that I could] 't

s turn!

•■■ resignation In as a rep. And he said well,

just hold off. Me had just got approval to get
his second staff member. Jack Livingston was

his staff member. So, he said, I want you to

come here to Detroit, work for me in the
department i tsel f . So, I t ransferred f rom

S *
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""err: 1z$ Region Z§ General Motors department.

i was sti l l secretary of the Council

and on the bargaining committee. And also,

did the same thing in '41. And then I had

t h i s " " ' p e r s o n a l d e c i s i o n . I f e l t t h a t
the fight that Hf^c ^S' and our Local put on

to make sure that the bargaining committee

was not G.orY\p/i^^ of reps, I felt that I could

not remain on that committee (laughing). So,

I resigned,

PP: Well , you stuck by your principles,

Merr: I stuck by the pr inciple. They tr ied to talk

me out of it, the guys on the Council. Because

I was in the formative stage.

PP: Did you actually have to resign from the Local,

i t s e l f ?

Merr: No, I just resigned D6- secretary of the Council
and from the national negotiating committee.

They wanted me to stay on.
PP: What was 'Walter's reaction to that?

Merr: He never did express any feelings on it. He

knew that they wouldn't have done much good

anyway. 'Cause I was a free thinker of my own.
I think he approved of what I did because of the

principle fight. Because I was the one that
led the fight in Cleveland. I 'm sure he

approved of it. We never discussed it. The
Question of my resigning, he never approached.
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PPs I was just interested because you had proposed

it and fought for it. And then when it came

Ht>4-Yvt pCHnV-'i you, yourself, followed your

precepts.
Merrs And I was the first guy that there was really

a conflict with0 It was a decision I made

on my own because of the principle0 And I

worked for Walter the GM department fromA
there unti l 19^7* All this t ime we had this

v ic ious po l i t ica l fight in our Union*

. In 19^7* when we finally gained control,,

we, I'm talking about Walter's forces, I was

working with an individual assistant GM
director who disliked me considerably and went

out of his way to make things difficult for me0

We had to have many clashes and wind up in a
7

(j&O )mawler„ I then notified Walter that I was

quitting and going back to the plant. The fellows
in the Local wanted me to come back and be

president of the Local Union. And he knew that
this had been going on8 I just couldn't work
under those conditions. I was just wasting

my time and fZUO) 0 Because what I was

doing, he would then go around and try to
undercut. And I was spending a lot of energy

for nothingo And I told him I was going back

into the plant, I wasn't going to work under

tha t .
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M e r r j W e h a d e l e c t e d n e w R e g i o n a l D i r e c t o r s o n /

each side of Detroit. And I was the liaison

fellow for Walter's forces in the- Region 1.

PP: Who was .the president at that time?

Merr: Mike Lacy. And I was the liaison and coor

d inator o f po l i t ica l ac ta / in Region 1. - I t

was the first t ime that Walter's forces

captured Region 1 pol i t ica l ly, in 19^7. I
was chairman of the caucus in 19*1-6, and laid

that groundwork. We captured in ';'o, we

elected Emil Magey while he was still in the

Services. I was chairman of the steering

committee for Walter? contact. Then In '^7

when we c leaned out C^hci ) , Emi l moved

up to j?ecretary J-xreasurer, Left a vacancy at
the Region and Mike Lacy was elected. By then

I was assistant director to Mike Lacy in

December of '^7. And I moved from GM depart

ment as his assistant.

PP: To the Region?

Merr: Yeah, in the Region.

PP: So, that you actually were never president of
the Local?

Merr: No. And I worked as his assistant until 195^,

when he passed away. And I was elected Regional

D i rec to r in "55 . I was d i rec to r un t i l I re t i red

in '77.

PP: Let's talk about some of the changes that took
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PP: p l a c e . P a r t i c u l a r l y i n c o n n e c t i o n w i t h 2 3 5 . o f -

Qpijfttf., that was just one of several Locals that you
h a d u n d e r y o u r j u r i s d i c t i o n , I d e a l i z e , I '

very ' " ' ' : :" , ted in the Pol ish component in the

Local and how the Local I tse l f , evo lved to

the o resen t bu i l d ins s in now.

Merr: The Local, i tsel f , in i t 's formative days,

Polish people played a very critical and key 1
part of the programming, in fa ct, they were

the real background of the Union. There were

some very fine Polish people who worked day and

night. And of course, the first president was
Joe SeMcki who was a hale, hearty, nice fellow;

let 's have-a-beer ( laughing) type-of—president.

Had a very (Jw) terms of office. We had yearly

elect ions for three years. Had a very (3€>?j£^^^> '

time. Me then was prevailed upon to run for

the city council in Hamtramck. Everybody in the

Local Union worked 1000$ to get him elected

councilman. Some because they liked him, others

because they wanted to get rid of him,

out of the Local, . p the;y did.

And the Local played a very strong role

in the reorganizat ion of the internat ional

Union. In 1939, when the Union reorganized

they had no money. The membership dues way
down. They were open shop. Several small

companies had a union shop but everything.
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Merr:

else was over there. And with the division,

most of the Locals represented in the Cleveland

convention represented very few members, although

they got the credit for it. My Local was one
o f t h e f e 1 I f d o z e n M . h i g ] i l e r -

- ' ] ' - L o u i , h i g ] s m b e : h i p ,

Atlanta Geor, " kepi i high membership, Se

loaned the International Union 030,000 to buy
a building on W. Grand Blvd., to use as the

UAW/CI0 headquarters. We had the money, so we
l o a n e d t h e r n t h a t * m o n e y . , _

How did you happen to have the money?

Well, we kept a high membership and we didn't

squander our money. There were sufficient
tightwads 'In there. And some of them were
Polish. That whenever some false, foolish

matters came up,Vblocked It. And so, we had

money. We had over $100,000. So we loaned
them, I think, twenty-six or twenty-se4fen
t h o u s a n d d o l l a r s . - — '

PP: A hundred thousand was a lot of money in those

days.
Merri Yes, And we also had 8000 members. So, we

loaned them the money. We then looked around

for a building. And this was before '39»

this was 193"t The bank building across the

street was one of those buildings the insurance

companies took over. It was up for sale for
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Merr
\

PP:

Merr

$50G0. And I was chairman of the trustees. And
the board said why don't you check it in and

see where we're at. So the three trustees

w e n t d o w n t o w n . t a l k e d t o t h e P o f f j L a i s ,

ither cue to e 1 t t e y t o l d

\

there was. I don't P ' \] they had one,

but they were putting the pressure on us. And

wanted us to give them an answer by the following

week. Well, we had no membership approval. So

the three trustees pooled our finances together

and we put down a $j>0 deposit. And then had

to go back and get approval from the member

ship at the e bership meeting three weeks
later to purchase it for $5000. Well, they

agreed to it, although political rumors were

around; bribery charges all over the place,

I was to get $2000, the Polish ante grew

$1500 and the Black followed with $1000, This

S5000 price ( laughing). But that was pol i t ics.
We bought the building. Stayed in that building

for about ten, twelve years. Finally bought the

lots across the street and GM bought the building.

And the city then bought the building. They

IMz i ) th rough . Tha t ' s how we came abou t .
And then that building was built, was it then?

h, the present building was built in the
60s. It staved in the bank for a number of

years. lar ly 193Q CMzh) bui ld ing was bui l t .
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PP:

Hem It's been there eA^er since. When you talk

about the role of the Polish people, they were

the backbone of that Local Union. Many of the

leaders reflected that they were of Polish decent.^

The first president was Sewicki and we've had

others.
Can you remember any particular Polish presidents

and any particular problems they had to deal with?

That stand out in your mind.

Merr: Well, we had a group of people in there, there

was a small handful of members of the Communist

party, who seized every opportunity to shut the

plant down. And it was very easy to shut a

plant down. Just start a rumor.
PP: This was about what year?

Merr: This was 1938 and '39. Just before World War II,
Sewicki was not qualified to handle It. He was

one of these happy-go-lucky guys. Whenever

trouble developed, he somehow or other was

always called away on business someplace downtown.
We had to then have meetings with some of the

Polish leaders.

PP: In Hamtramck, itself, you mean?

Merr: Hamtramck, and North Detroit. They lived all over.

PP: Oh I see, so in other words, not just people
who were working in Gear and Axle but people in

the Polish community.
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Merr : No, Gear and Ax le fi rs t . We go t these so-ca l led

leaders who we knew had some following. We

b e g a n t o s i t d o w n ( 4 5 ^ J a n d t a l k a b o u t i t

because our people were losing t ime.

PP: Let me ask you one th ing about the leaders . / /hen

you say these leaders , what type o f ind iv idua ls

w e r e t h e s e ? —

Merr: There were three types, There were people who

were e lec ted to the top pos i t ions in the Loca l .

There was Sewicki, there was Eddie Cruse, there

was Eddie^a lsk i . Joe Pocko was the f ront end 6^4

s e c r e t a r y. D e s s i p w a s t h e r e c o r d i n g s e c r e t a r y.

Ed Druse was the trustee. Babalski was

sergeant at arms. These were the e lected top.

We then had some Polish people who were committee

men. We had other Polish who were alternate

committeemen. Then we had other Polish people

who we re ac t i ve ; pa r t i c i pa te i n Loca l Un ion

meet ings ; wou ld express op in ions on issues.

And were leaders in the i r depar tment . Bu t ,

many of them didn ' t take the t rouble to run

f o r o f fi c e ; w o u l d h a v e b e e n e l e c t e d b u t d i d n ' t

w a n t i t . L o y a l l e a d e r s a n d h a d I n fl u e n c e .

We began to sit down with them on how to

get a "■ ■'" i of this because our people were losing
t h e i r t i m e a n d t h e y c o u l d n ' t a f f o r d i t i n t h o s e

days. Through that , we then expanded that group

and brought in some I ta l ians. We brought in some
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Merr: Blacks. And we began to do £cW0frh$\QI work

by talking to people. Getting up at the meeting
when people tried to stampede us. By this time

we also received training on the Communist

tactics and how to combat them.. And this is

how we began to get a handle on it.

And then also the Corporation began to have

seminars on how to handle wildcat strikes, etc.

We then got the law passed. And then we got

the contract that said no strike. '" i t was in

^ 19M, No-st r ike ] ' wh ich t l ey 3 1 1 Lz j l&L
to enforce i t .

hv ,: ■' ' ;re a no-strike clause? I mean, what

would that mean then?

Merr: Well, the contract was that the contract was in

effect and there would be no strike during the

duration of the contract, unless it was

authorized by the International Union. And

they began to enforce it. And we also, in 19^1,

adopted an umpire system. Because in 19^0, after
we reorganized we found that our final step

of the grievance procedure with the committee

meeting of the international General Motors
Representative and a corporate representative
in Detroi t . And i f these minor gr ievances
that were legitimate grievances but they were

not of the nature that you would shut a plant

down over. Sometimes it's six hours pay or
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Merrs something like that. And we had no way to
solve those. 3o in 19^1 we accepted the concept

of i f te^mpart ia l umpire. And wi th the impart ia l

umpire there was no unauthorized walk-outs. They
would have had the right.to penalize.

PPs What happened to these people then who were

pro-Communist? Did they stay in the plant or
did they move elsewhere when they founds they

couldn' t do i t?

Merrs The Jimmy Higginses, and these are fellows who
follow along, stayed, Two or three of the

top leaders who were sent in there, eventually

disappearedi went somewhere else. There were
some very good people who were taken. Only

because you had no place to turn during the

Depressiono And of course, the Communist

propaganda was very encouraging.
PPs Well, then did these people direct their

energies to .^v <
Merrs They would direct their ener^gy but by this time

we had been doing educational work. And we were

able to focus a spotlight on them and what their

objective was. And we began to slowly but surely,
eliminate them in elections. One of the best

educational issues that we used on them, which

finally brought up very clearly what their

objective was, was the experience that we had
in Local 51 which was dominated completely by
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Merrs the Communist party.

With the break of the war in Europe, in the

1939 all to I9J+O, when Germany and Russia were

allies, Communist leaders, the real ones, were

going around talking to the various Local Unions
about, and th-ey call.^l± the Imperial Blood Bath.
No support for England and France. Imperial

Blood Bath, America should not be involved at -

al l . In 191+1 or ^0, the thing that brought

it out, Plymouth Local always had these resolutions

of the Imperial Blood Bath. And they sent their

officers arounci #pz$^\er#) to th e 1 o ca 1 unions?

the allies are not coming, and all that stuff,

that went along with it. They passed a resolution

on Saturday. We used to meet on Saturday at the

Local. So Local 51» on^ Saturday afternoon they

passed the resolution. Sent it to the Wfli|ir&

County Council, which comprised up all the
A F L - C I O u n i o n s o f \ f \ f a i | n t C o u n t y. 0 * w . ^ _ .
the allies in Europe and the United States

for sending, at that time we were sending

m a t e r i a l t o t h e a l l i e s . A n d u r g i n g c e a s e

sending any morejmaterial to the warmongers,
in the Imperialist Blood Bath, and so forth.

Saturday night, Germany attacked Russia.
Our council met on Monday night, Wayne County

Council. A second resolution came in from

Local 51. It was delivered Sunday afternoon.
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Merr: Because the People's war opened a Second front,

al l out war effort unt i l . . . Tracy Dahl, who

was president of the Council, on Monday night

when we got into new business, picked up these

tv/o resolutions, said I have a problem here.

He named the' president of the Local 51 who

was very vocal. He said would you please tell

us which one of these two resolutions you want

us to act upon. And he read them both. Of

course the meeting broke up in hilarity. But,

that "was the most effective weapon to expose

the Communists, what they were up to. That all

their b£cv£) \\ofV talks about the working people

meant nothin,T. It was a question of the

polit ical aspirations and program of . . .
End Tape 1./ Begin Tape 2, Side 1.

PP: I'm talking with Mr. George Merrelli and we
are on tape number 2 now. He is talking

about some of the problems that occurred with

the Communists. And the role of the Polish

people in solving some of these problems.
Merr: In the early days of the UAW, most people

who joined the union were not familiar with

parliamentary law or tactics. They were not
trained for that. They were good cit izens.

The Communists were able to control a number

of local unions. But i t 's just a smal l hanTul i
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Merr: of people 'cause they were trained in public

speaking. They were trained and they devised
a tactic to put one or two persons in each

section of the halls to make it seem that this

was a majori ty thing, The third tact ic that they

used, while they were very small, half of them
were able to ' „ the meetings. Was they wouldA
drag the meeting out»j^nd of course, people would

leave, get fed up. Until they could count and
realize they had the majority. And then they

would pass their resolution very quickly.

Well, we who were at the Communists,
realized that we were being outsmarted in

our meetings. Because we did not have the

experience. Being boxed in. And we had to
have some training, Fortunately, there were

a few Catholic priests in the area who were

concerned about what was happening. And then

set up classes on Parliamentary Lav;, Communist

t a c t i c s .

PP: These were done in the church? In Hamtramck?

Merr: Mo. In fact, it was outside Hamtramck. Father

Clancy was one. I remember there were three
or four priests who 'worked with us,

PP: Mas there any in Hamtramck?

Merr: Yes, there was one in tramck.

PP: Which church?
"err: They formed a organization called the Active
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Merr: Catholic Trade Unionists, ACTU, in which

we went in iand got the information out. I

had background in parliamentary law because I

(jcf\ In the early days because of . g
one year of education in tactics, Our basic

group were the Polish people who were Catholics.

PP: What church in Hamtramck?

Merr: St, Flor&IMSI. We had a priest from downtown
who was in the chancellory. There were four

priests who decided to work with us.
Do you remember the name of the priest at

St. Florence at that time?

Mo, it was a Polish name about that long.
And he was not one of the educators.

What year was this?

1938, '39. Par t icu lar ly in 1939. In which
we had to begin to try to take the union away

from the left wing. And the backbone of this

organization was the Polish people. There Vg<£
; some Italians Involved, but th ': :kgroi

p "' " 1 . ir F i •' t] ey sat down for the

first t ime begin to see the tact ics, explain

the tactics and the strategies that were used.

From that, the leadership began to spread

out. ^he Polish people in the Hamtramck area
and around there in Dodge Local 236, 235, 262,

had a major role In wrestling those Locals

awav from the Communist influence. Officers
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Merr: were not Communists, But, they were under the

influence only because these people knew what

they were doing and they had no way to counteract
i t . And i t was through th is eduat ional effor t
of the Catholic group, educating the Polish

leadership, and others of these tactics, that
thev began to form effective organization within

these Local unions to wrest control away from

them. So, in those ■-"•nig days, Inn Polls]

group in Dodge Local, ':enr and Axle, Chevy Forge,

Champion Spark Plug and Murray Body, played a

very effect ive ro le in s tabi l iz ing the union
and getting it away from the Communist control;

Communist force in the union. This I think,

was their most important role,

./hat other classes did they have besides

parliamentary law?
Merr: Collective bargaining, public speaking, and

tactics. And also, very much on how to spot

a Commie by the familiar phrases that they use,

And if this phrase popped up, you

] : ' - . a w a y .■ " ■ ' p o s e
- i for hat 3 as, That was , perhaps, the

most important thing, was the phrases that

would be used by them. And they still use
the same thing. It 'was this kind of education

that began to break the background. And the

•olish people in the Detroit area played a

PP:
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Merr: tremendous role in that, Without them, I don*

think we could have wrested the control away.

That's the early history and the big role they

played. At Sear and Axle they played a very-

big role, because as I said, they were a .v-ery

large percentage.
The other most important thing was they

were able to gain an understanding of what

the union was about. They exhibited the .

loyalty that no matter what it was, if it was
the union position, it was a good position.

And they 'would accept positions without

question. Even though personally they might
have disagreed or wondered if this was any-

good, their loyalty to the union was the back

ground. They played a terr ific role in the

'39 s t r ike , They p layed a ter r ific ro le in
the 19^6 strike at GM, They were the bulk work

of holding the union together during the war

years, Ir l ie" t3 ■ Communisl i , with 11 their
Efforts to sabotage, and they were efforts in

erica. With the attack of Russia by Germany,

they were prepared to give the union away.

They were prepared to give an absolute, no-holds-
barred, no-strike pledge with the provision that

anyone who violated the no-strike pledge would
be immediately discharged and put in jail. The

Reuther forces .1 aga inst that po l icy. t fent on
A



Merr: the basis of voluntary no-strike pledge with

a guarantee that we would not tolerate un

authorized str ikes. I t was the Polish people

WHO stood with the union.

They trusted Walter, trusted his forces.

By this time, because of the educational work.

And, I think, protected the UAWaunion being

placed in the category of the type of trade
union that they 3 ave in Russia; dominated by

iRELLI

PP:

Merr:

the government completely.

How much do you think the effort put forth

by the Polish people, here in Detroit, was

possibly influenced by the fact that so many
of them came out of the coal mining areas of

Pennsylvania, West Virginia, where the conditions
were so bad?

I think there were three factors that brought

them in tightly. Mot only that there were

many Polish w'hc had coal mine background.
Their religious background: anti-Communist.

A third group were people who they were

considered the lowe^t.-g on the totem pole?

that dumb Polack. They were discriminated

against very much. Even more so than the
I ta l i ans . I t h ink i t was Po l i sh fi rs t and

Italian second on the discriminatory thing.

It was that. And they gained respect in the
union. And this, I think, was the motivat ing
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Merr : factor behind the i r loya l ty : that they got

a degree of respect with it.

And when I say they played a terrific

role on the generality, let me give you a very

good example of the role/\they played. In 1938,
when Reeding got elected mayor of Detroit, he

went throughout the nation boasting that he

was going to drive the CIO out of the city.

And he meant it. There were more pitched battles

with the police, strikes. One of the most

vicious strikes was at the plant on the Wesi

side. Mot a very big plant, but a brass plant.

They were running battle with the police be
cause the company was running scabs in the

p l a n t . N o w [ d i e ) a r d ; + h £ M i c h i g a n a r e a
in which the houses were on top of one another.
And they would split heads at the slightest

provocation. And, of course, we had to run
for our lives. Our escape was between the

houses. And of course, the police would
chase us behind with the damn clubs. It's

a Polish neighborhood. The third day of the

str ike and the fights with the pol ice, the fight

started in the morning. The police started,

we go between the houses, ^nd without any

real organization, although there was some,

it so happened that on the back porch of the
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Merrs house, and they were close. There was only

about four feet between the houses there.

There happened to be a mop pail there full

of dirty water and mop. The police came throug]

'YJe" run down. And when the police would be
(M3)after us, the women would (laughing) with this

mop. a "right in the face! That dampened their

spir i ts considerably. This went on for two

days. Then the police gave up because they
were on OUT"' property and had no business,

no right to get into it : '/" the Polish women.

PP: They just lef t those dir ty pai ls in the way,

Merr: They just put those pails right on that back

porch, And as the pol ice fight starts they'd
be back there. $r\d 6h \fal. : guy come fuiflirtg) 4hfl3ogf\

they knew the police would follow him. It
saved that situation. There are many of these

kind of^incidents in which they played this

role. lost of the Polish women were from

Poland. Could barely speak English. Could

understand less. Yet, their heart was there.

Because they got the respect and the recognition.

This was their recognition.

So, when they talk to you about Polish and
it 's role in the early days, it wa: a very

Lgnificant role they played. ' ty of their
ders. But, it wa: t3ia1 co bination
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' "errs of being discr iminated against, their rel igion,

and the thing that gained their loyalty, A

very important role in the early days of the union.
PP: How about the value of hard work to the Polish

male? How did that affect the work of the Polish
male in Chevy Gear and Axle?

Merr: Well, Chevrolet at Sear and Axle was a heavy

goods Industry. Most of the work was heavy.

Maybe ten or fifteen percent was light work.
Most of the others were heavy. With their

foreign backgrounds, and you're talking now

mostlyJfforeign backgrounds, and whether they
came from, coal nine, and the background also tOniC'A

was hard, back breaking work. They were able

to do the work and tolerate the work without
Aft**

harmful effects on their bodv. v sry
- r d . T h e A r e t a 3 v t . ■ o f b y t h e

corporation. Because ski l ls were very l imited,
and all you had was your brawn and your sweat

to give for sale.

PP: Did you notice any difference between a pride

in their work that the Polish people had as

opposed to others that were non-Polish?
Merri Yes. The pride in the work. The pride in the

work went to all ethnic groups. ,/hether it
was Germans and Italians and Ukranians, Russians.

Thev took great pride in their work. And if you

\

J
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w a n t e d 1 fi I t h a i t , j u s l . I n t i n 1

t h e y f r w o r 3 1 h e = t 1 3 k .

They took great pr ide, part icular ly i f they
were from Europe, That they were able to

accomplish with limited background, with

practically no experience with productive
methods at all. Come to the United States

and be able to handle these jobs. They had

great pride in their work. They were re- .

sponsible 1p many successful changes once they
were organized and listened to, to quality of

work,
\ #PP: Do youNthink this pride has stayed with^ suc

ceeding generations of decendants from European

groups?
Merr: Yes. I can't speak about the last five years

because I've been out of the plant. Yes, the

pride is there. Why do I say that? As

regional director I wasn't very observant
work things and saved a lot of companies

with their advice on what to do; small companies.

One of the best examples of why the pride

is sti l l there with the younger generation:

Bud was having difficulties in the late '60s

early '70s. And there are many reasons why.
They were completely demoralized; the workerSj

management and all. And had got the reputation
t h a t n o i ! "■■■ " 1 v ; , ; | " a n y t h i n g , f i
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Merrs lazy hunch of people, And everybody was pointing

the .fingen person. Bud took some drastic

steps. They were also beginning to hire, under-
the law. Blackse The president of the company

of Bud came to me. I was - the regional

director and had participated in a series of

negotiations which almost resulted in a strike^
and was able to get an agreement without the

strike. He had talked to some other people %

management people, And asked that they have
lunch with Norm Matthews and I, who was the

director of the Bud council. He wanted to

talk about the situation at Bud's, where every

thing had gone completely to pot8 And wanted
to know if we had any thoughts on-it.

And we had. We pointed out what we thought

were some of the weaknesses. He accepted a

number of our suggestions. After making an

investigation, found out what we were telling
him were true. He began to tighten up^ his

organization, which is management people.
About a year later, he wanted to talk to us.

He wanted to do something about lifting the

morale of the people in the plant. We suggested

to him, and the suggestion came because he
said they seem to have no pride in their work

at al l , They didn't care. Which we challenged
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Merr: him on. Said he was wrong. The problem was

no recognit ion of their pride. And so they

eventually gave up. Said what's the use.

Suggested to him a thing to do and your

going to find out. I said before you do it,
because I had experience on this before, that

he spend some money and clean the plant up,

and have a family day. Rave the employees

br ing the i r fami l ies to the p lant , "Ah" ,
he says. "Nobody will come." I says, you're

wrong. They have great pride in their work.
And I said if you don't think they have pride

in their work, why don't you stop in the bar
across the street after "work. Oo in and just

sit there and l isten. And you' l l hear them

talk about their work and what their doing.

You'll hear them, I said. And I don't know

who's there. But, he did send somebody into

the bar to listen. And sure enough, the guys

were talking about their work. Having their

beer after Vfcrk, relaxing, and talking about

their work and what they were able to do, and

how they did it, Of course, he also heard some

uncomplimentary things about the dumb foreman.

(laughing) He then called us and we suggestedj
have an open house with the families. I said,

spend 050,000, clean up the plant. Have a tent,
have some prizes for them after they come through.
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Merrs He reluctantly did that, And I said, when you

have that open house, I want you to go down

into that plant and watch the guy with his

family come walking through there and then

they s top . He ' l l be ta lk ing , he ' l l be po in t ing .
You can bet your last dollar, that's where he

works. And he's explaining what he does to

his family. He did. And they had a dinner for

the leaders later on. And he says, George,

you were right. And he said, time and time, and
M b ) , a n d a l l o f a s u d d e n h e w o u l d

stop. And he'd be there explaining and talking
about it and pointing to it. And he was talking

about his job. He was proud of what he was

doing. He was explaining to his family what
he was doing,

PPs This happened at Bud, Did they ever do anything

like that at Gear and Axle?

Merrs Oh yes. They've had open houses right along.
That's where I got the idea. They had had

open houses in the early part. They then *wd

gave them up and they now have open houses

again every year,
PPs I want to talk a moment now about the educational

programs at 235, When did they actually start?
Of course, I consider there are two types of

classes, really, There are the classes^ per
taining to Union things. And then the other type.
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The first educational thing that we got into

was we had a educational director by the name

of Sh i f f . ( i ^ j Sh i f f , a Jewish fe l low, who

was interested in education. When the Inter

national Union had their educational program

for the winter months of 193° and '39, he

selected six of us from our Local. I1" ere

;,. • ' for Local Unio . sleeted, And he
] M e to be one of them. And the objective

of that session was, and I said this was three

nights a week plus four hours on Saturday,
which is a lot of t ime. Because I 'd just

leave work, clean up and beat it. They trained

us in parliamentary law, public speaking so

that we wouldn't get tongue-tied, grievance

procedure, contracts construction, and some

senior i ty. A l though these fe l lows weren ' t
too fami l ia r w i th sen ior i ty. The ob jec t ive

was to train us so that we could then go

into the Local Unions and teach. Part icularly,

the interest was on parliamentary law so that

they could effectively run a Local Union.
M o t 1 1 b f t ) > n ° u " t f o r r u n n i n g t h e

Union the proper way.

So, I taught parliamentary law in 19*1-0,
latter part of ' 39s 19^0. This was the

original begi Lng. Then they started educa
tional courses in Local Unions. And so, we

\
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Merrs participated in that, • From that gew this whole

thing of voluntary work,
PPs The more recent courses^ they've had m pre

retirement, did they have those type of courses
when you were director?

Mem Yes, I was involved in pre-retirement programs

that we had, I'm surprised that they don't have

them now. Although, a lot of the majority of

people don't care about it, Butjj'a lot of them uM€>
do,

PP? I th ink they s t i l l have them. I j us t don ' t

think that a large number of workers take

advantage of them,
Merrs That 's true, unfortunately, they don't . Because

they think they have the answers, And then they
find out they don't .

Well, the educational features began with
t h a t l i t t l e s t a r t o f t r a i n i n g f o r t y o r f o r t y - f o u r

of us to go out into the fields, And this is

mostly the metropolitan Detroit area because
that's where the membership was. And then

going to the Local Unions to train them to
run the Local Unions and how to handle grievance,

and things l ike that, That's how our educational

program started,
From that, of course, we expanded into

a big operation,

PPs Let's talk a moment about some of the new
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F P : t e c h n o l o g y , L i k e u s e o f c o m p u t e r s a n d r o b o t i c s ,

u s e o f r o b o t s i n a u t o m a t i o n a t ^ . G e a r a n d A x l e .

M e r r : T h e r o b o t i c s n o w , i s a n o t h e r t e r n . T h e r e ' s b e e n

a h a l f a d o z e n t e r m s .

P F : L e t ' s t a l k a b o u t a u t o m a t i o n fi r s t .

M e r r : T h e fi r s t a u t o m a t i c e q u i p m e n t t h a t I e x p e r i e n c e d

m y s e l f , p e r s o n a l l y . A n d I h a d t h i s p r i v i l e g e

w h e n I w a s w o r k i n g a t F o r d ' s , I n 1 9 2 9 > t h e j

i g h t i 3 " . c h i n e f r o i i y t 3 a t - ' 5

' . e v e n o p e ' n s , I w a s o n e o f t h e f o u r y o u

t o r u n i t . I t w a s a p r i v e l e g e ,

I d o n ' t k n o w w h y I ' w a s s e l e c t e d t o r u n i t , b u t

i t w a s j u s t a p r i v e l e g e . A n d w e w o r k e d w i t h

t h e G e r m a n e n g i n e e r s . T h a t w a s m y fi r s t o p e n

e x p e r i e n c e t o i t .

G M i n t r o d u c e d a u t o m a t i c e q u i p m e n t . w e

u s e d t o c a l l i t a u t o m a t i c o r m e c h a n i c a l h a n d l i n g .

I n t h e ' 3 0 s , A t G e a r a n d A x l e , t h e y b r o u g h t i n

o n e y e a r , d u r i n g t h e a m b u l a t o r y t i l i n g , a p u n c h

p r e s s t h a t d i d s i x o p e r a t i o n s . W h i c h w a s a l l

m e c h a n i c a l l y h a n d l e d . T h e y h a d d i f f e r e n t n a m e s

f o r i t , b u t i t ' s a l l t h e s a m e t h i n g .

P P : W h a t w a s t h e e f f e c t o n t h e p e r s o n w o r k i n g i n

t h e p l a n t w h o h a d b e e n u s e d t o d o i n g i n d i v i d u a l

o pe ra t i o ns ? H ow d i d h e re a c 1 ".

r " " e r r : T h e fi r s t r e a c t i o n w a s h e w a s c o n c e r n e d t h a t

I t m i g h t t a k e m y j o b a w a y . B u t t h e y d i d i t

o n s u c h a s m a l l s c a l e . T h e i n d i v i d u a l r e a c t i o n ?
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Merrs The guy who was put on that job had the best

job in the world. 'Cause it took al!L the

physical effort out of i t , I was put on this

press in Gear and Axle that came in with six

operations, I used to work a punch press on
wheels. There would be six of us working on it

in s ix d i f fe rent operat ions. I t a l l came

under one, I was given that job. The toughest

job I had was staying awake, All of the

physical effort was out of it. The job was to
watch that it kept workings that the arm pushed

i t through, that the d ies d idn ' t s t ick . The

best" job in the world. There was not the

concern about it until they began to use it

more and more and more. It's not new. The

automatic equipment, and that's really what it

is, has been way back since the '30s,
PPi Now with this new technology they call robotics,

which is actually the use of robot equipment.

When did that really come into Gear and Axle?

Merrs In the '30s,

PPs In other words, a progression from the auto

mation type,

Merrs All of this automatic stuff has to have high

volume. It's so expensive, you have to have

a high volume. You can't use it on small

L&(t) • ^u^' * saw "fche adverrt of



Merr: automatic welders. Saw the advent of auto

matic sprayers. The large volume of changes,

I think has been, in the last ten, twelve years.

And this came about because Japan was

rebui l t . They s tar ted f rom scratch. They

didn't have the old equipment that you don't

go out and buy new. And they started all newJ

So, all of the modern ideas were there. So,
when they bought equipment, they bought new

automated equipment. In the United States,

to buy new automated equipment came about

through attr i t ion. When the old stuff wore

out, they had to buy a new one so^they brou
in new modern ideas; modern equipment. I'l l

be t i f you ta lk to the Indus t r ia l i s ts , you ' l l

fi n d t h a t w a s t h e , w e l l , L d ^ J . W a s t h e

fact that they wouldn't put out the money 'cause

they still had all the equipment that could do
the job. But they bought new equipment as they

went along. Automatic spraying came in to

being in the 1950s. Mechanical handling of
roofs and stuff at GM and other plants came in

the '50s.

We call this mechanical handling. Now

they call it robotics. , They had another name
here about two, three years ago. What^was it?

I t 's a l l the same pr incip le.

PP: What about the use of computers?

MERRSLLI
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Computers aga in are another schan ica l opera t ion .

T3iey first began to ta lk about computer tapes at

GM Tech Center, Th is was fi f teen, twenty years

ago . Bu t , t hen aga in , ' i t does t he same th i ng .

I t d o e s i t b y t a p e . T h e o r i g i n a l ( 9 ^ ° )

equipment did it by a wheel that went around

i n a c i r c l e . W i t h " " a n c e d e n g i n e e r i n g ; y o u

w e ■ " M e t o p - ; J - 11 t > ' ' i f f I * e i t

operated the rnacl i ;ry from tape wj b3 holes

p u n c h e d i n i t , a n d s o f o r t h . S o t h a t ' s t h e

advanced computer th ing . And o f course , the las t

t en , fi f t een yea rs , t hey ' ve gone sky h i gh w i t h

the th ing, complete ly. More and more people
fi twanted i t , Bu t the ideas n no t new.

)
I men t i oned to you the fi r s t r obo t , t he

R i z z o b r o t h e r s i n t h e ' 3 0 s . T h e y e x h i b i t e d

i t a t the Wor ld 's Fa i r in Ch icago in 1933-

W e l l , i t w a s n ' t a ( < P ^ D ) b u t a

C ^ S l ) w h o c o u l d t a k e a s t r a i g h t w a l k i f

t h e r e w a s a ( e ^ 5 n ) t h e r e , i t w o u l d c o m e o v e r.

And they had a C ^5~tJ

PP: Mow, you sa id th is was the R izzo bro thers .

How do you spell Rizzo?

Merr : R-I -Z-Z-0. I don' t know what happened to them.

PPs And they were from Gear and Axle?

Merr: They were tool makers at Gear and Axle. And

they came up wi th th is th ing. And they then
h a d t h e i r o w n p l a n t o n t h e t s i d e . I d o n '

)
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[errs know i f i t 's s t i l l in operat ion or not . Never

got the recognition because they didn't have the

( J l < Z > ) . T h e y h a d t h i s m e c h a n i c a l
man in 1933. The names have changed, but what

we're doing new, we're just improving upon

old ideas that came along.

And Japan did more of the automatic because

they were building new plants, './hole new
plants,- new equipment. They had the advantage
over us because they didn't have the old equip

ment L3L-3J

PP: How do you feel about Japanese and other foreign

cars being imported in to the Uni ted tes

i t ' s e f f e c t o n f c i t r y ' s

Merrs T3 ■.. ' been a great deal of talk about the

percentage lias been moved up. The percentage
does move up because of the reduction in the

volume. And nobody was concerned when we were

s e l l i n g t e n m i l l i o n c a r s t ? - ^ ) . T h e y
weren't concerned about Japan selling a million

and a half cars in the United States. Because

they were selling everything they could build.

Japan, they have no master of technology or

anything else on a certain thing. GM painted

Japan as having a reputation oaputting out junk.

End Side 1, Begin Side 2

he younger Japanese leaders, particularly the
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Merrs post-war, Second World War leaders.very

sensative about this reputation of putt ing

out junk. So, they established a course to

train their young people in engineering and

others to get away from this thing. To pay

very close attent ion to qual i ty, Because of
t h i s ( ^ n i y f r o m t h e j u n k , v e r y c l o s e l y,

They contrast that to the American Auto
builders. And they're not happy about this,
even though they do agree to it occasionally0

The United States was on an inclinej

sel l ing everything they could put out. Qual i ty
meant nothing. This happened about fifteen

years ago. Maybe a l i t t le longer, 'Cause
we had strikes of grievance of this kind

wi th our people protest ing infer ior s tuff

that they had to put on the cars, But, they

sold everything they could put out. And they

didn' t care. Wel l , the end resul t of that

is, when Japan began to put the good car out5
the small car being very successful as far as

riding quality and stuff on the West coast
because there was no ditches and^chuck holes

and stuff l ike that to r ide. So, you could

ride very comfortably. Well, now the good:

car began to get a reputation as a good auto

mobile. And the U.S. customers were griping
more and more about this damn piece of junk.
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Merrs And the huge joke used to be about you buy a

Chrysler and the first thing you have to do
is put the door back on. And then the other thing,
and this is true of all of them. My daughter
has a Chevy Nova, a 1976e I checked it out0
And on the panel inside that holds the wind
s h i e l d , C ? & v ) 0 O n t h e l e f t s i d e ,
it fits very good.down to the column. But the

r i g h t s i d e i s L ^ l )
It raised my curiosity because we were

beginning to feel Japanese competition. This
was in '?6, But when I went totke ^tf££Tmarket
out there, every Nova I saw, well, I'll take
a look. Everyone had that gap in it on the

right side. Instead of taking the time to
correct it when they made the mistake on their
d i e , C ? ^ 2 ^ >

End result, they lost the confidence of the

United States buyer,
That's one of your biggest problems today0

They are beginning to put out a good auto
mobile. In my opinion, it's going to take
five years to gain the confidence back

C2Q&) * Secondly, they didn't go into
the small car because they were making a lot
of money on the big one. It was only when

gasoline prices doubled and tripled in 1973 Jfak"
they became conscious of the low mileage. But,
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Merrs here Ford again made a (^v s tatement
that they wouldn't. That's why Ford's in so

much trouble,

The competition of Japan, nobody was

concerned when we were building ten million,

because it was only ten percent of our sales.

The figures, percentage is very high now.

But , i t isn ' t any more cars . In fact , they ' re

selling less cars than they did three years ago,

Japan's worried about their cars piling up in
the United States, and not sell ing, Theysold

1,600,000 cars. Well, 1,600,000 cars over

eleven, twelve! sale years plus 13$ylnthink
i t was, they st i l l sel l a mil l ion and a half

cars in the United States. But, a mill ion and

a half in a six mill ion sale!year gives you

23, Zkfo. They're really not selling any more
cars. But, they're sel l ing a higher percentage.

A n d I t ^ ° h w h a t a l l o f t h e s e p e o p l e a r e

talk ing about, I don' t see that figure being

reduced, significantly unti l two things happen.

One, increase in auto sales. Where we get a

higher percentage, And they convince the
American public that they've got a good car.

This is my personal opinion. And I can't see

anything on the horizon that should change it.
PP; Well, thank you. That's a very nice note to

s t o p a t , i
End of Interview,


